



APRIL 19-23, 2023, BALTIMORE, MD

## **The Baltimore Declaration**

Action Agenda Outlining the Way Forward and Synopsis of Selected Speeches and Presentations



## Contents

Overview	03
Action Agenda	04
Addressing/Resolving the Crisis in Haiti: The First Black Republic	04
<ul> <li>Building Support for Reparatory Justice for Afro-Descendants in Colombia and Beyond</li> </ul>	04
Honoring the Life and Legacy of Maurice Bishop: A Delegation to Grenada	05
Supporting the Polisario Front and the Independence Western Sahara	06
Connecting Black Brain Power for Black Development: Hon. P.J. Patterson's Challenge	06
Supporting Hon. Mia Mottley's Global Reparatory Justice Initiatives	07
Providing Administrative Support for Global Circle for Reparations and Healing	07
• Expanding the Pan African Unity Dialogue: Practicing Pan Africanism Wherever We Are	08
• Building Relationships with Black Mayors Associations in the Pan African World	08
Convening a Global Summit on Water as a Human Right	09
Combating Gentrification as a State of Emergency in Black America	09
Advancing Paradigms for Reimagining Public Safety and Law Enforcement	10
• Supporting The Live Free Initiative as a Model for Movement-Building	10
• Supporting Black Lives Matter Grassroots to Regain Funds for the People's Struggle	11
Special Initiatives	12
• Supporting the Black World Media Network as a Legacy Project for Don Rojas	12
• Establishing a Dr. Leonard Jeffries and Dr. Rosalind Jeffries Appreciation Fund	13
Assessment and Call to Action	14
Synopsis of Selected Speeches and Presentations	16
Acknowledgements	20



## **Overview**



Day 1 of SOBWCV: Dr. Ron Daniels

April 19 – 23, 2023, people of African descent, Black people gathered in Baltimore, Maryland, USA from Black America, the far-flung regions of the Global Black Diaspora and the Pan African World for State of the Black World V. Convened by the Institute of the Black World 21st Century under the leadership of Dr. Ron Daniels, President with Dr. Julius **Garvey**, the son of the iconic Marcus Garvey as the Honorary Chairman, the Conference was organized around the Theme: Global Africans Rising, Empowerment, Reparations and Healing. As such, State of the Black World Conference V (SOBWCV) was envisioned to be one of the great gatherings of people of African descent in the 21st Century; an opportunity for IBW to model and firmly establish its role as a good faith facilitator and convener of results-oriented summits, symposia and conferences grounded in its mantra of "promoting a culture of collaboration to heal and empower Black families, communities and nations."

The highlights of this unique gathering of people of African descent are too numerous to catalogue in this Declaration. However, the informational and inspirational speeches and presentations by a formidable array of leaders from the Pan African world were instructive, edifying and memorable. A few among the numerous speeches and presentations are cited in a Synopsis to illustrate the power and significance of SOBWCV. As notable as the incredible speeches/presentations were, time and time again Dr. Ron Daniels, Convener of the Conference, reminded the amazing assembly of Participants that as people of African descent, Black people, we are each other's best teachers. Imbedded in the collective mind, spirit and "soul of Black folks" are all the essential assets and tools required for the survival and development of Black families, communities and nations. To maximize our collective potential, however, we must break out of our individual, self-imposed, protective silos to engage in a learning/sharing process and experience with each other.

This learning/sharing process and experience was the vital centerpiece of the State of the Black World Conference as reflected in the Eight Issue Areas selected for deliberation and action. Every Participant had the opportunity to be exposed to and learn about the key content and concerns for each Issue Area during the eight Issue Area Plenary Sessions. This was followed by a full day in which Participants selected one of the eight areas to engage in a deep-dive for qualitative learning/sharing experience with an emphasis on models, best-practices and/or formulating projects, programs, initiatives and strategies to constitute the way forward as an outcome of State of the Black World Conference V. Recommendations for the way forward were also derived from the Special Sessions, which were powerful, highly informative aspects of this global gathering.

As the Co-Facilitators finalize and submit the recommendations and proposals from the deliberations in each Issue Area, they will be posted on the IBW website at **www. ibw21.org**. IBW makes no claim of having the capacity to implement the totality of recommendations and proposals submitted. Instead, we look to other organizations, institutions and agencies attending/participating in the Conference to select and implement action items which align with their mission in the collaborative spirit of collective work and responsibility. What follows are the priority action items which will be evaluated by IBW for implementation.



## **Action Agenda**

Priority action items which will be evaluated by IBW for implementation



## Addressing/Resolving the Crisis in Haiti: The First Black Republic

The Haiti Support Project is an arm of the Institute of the Black World which is committed to building a constituency for Haiti among African Americans to collaborate with Haitians to advance democracy and development in the First Black Republic. As an outcome of the Special Session on Haiti, the Haiti Support Project (HSP) is committed to collaborating with the Haitian American Foundation for Democracy to mobilize/organize a formidable coalition in the U.S. in support of the Montana Accord Movement as the inclusive, comprehensive, people-based movement which offers the greatest promise for resolving the current crisis and advancing a process to create an authentic Haiti-based democracy and sustainable development in the First Black Republic.



Day 4 of SOBWCV: Crisis in Haiti session

## Building Support for Reparatory Justice for Afro-Descendants in Colombia and Beyond

IBW is committed to increasing public awareness of the struggle for full freedom, dignity, equality and reparatory justice for the millions of Afro Descendants in Colombia. To that end, IBW has established relationships with key social justice, human rights, reparations advocates and officials of the new government in Colombia. While **Hon. Francia Marquez**, the first Afro-Descendant Vice-President of Colombia, was unable to attend the Conference, we were delighted to receive **Senator Dorina Hernandez Polomino** as our Special Guest and Legacy Award Recipient and **Helmer Quinones**, Advisor to the Vice-President. **Senator Polomino** was



Vicepresidenta Francia Márquez

the featured Presenter for the Global Black Women's Summit Breakfast Special Session where the topic was **Supporting** the Struggle for Justice and Reparations for Afro-Descendants in Colombia. Senator Polomino was warmly received.

As a follow-up to the Conference, we will seek to educate and engage a broad cross-section of elected officials, civil rights, human rights, faith, labor, youth and women's organizations in Black America to support the struggle of Afro-Descendants in Colombia. This will include organizing a Fact Finding and Support Delegation to Colombia in the next 12 months which will include representatives of women's organizations to interact with women's organizations in Colombia. In addition, IBW will invite **Vice-President Francia Marquez** to undertake a multicity tour to share her vision for reparatory justice for Afro-Descendants in Colombia.

IBW's focus on Colombia should be understood as an important dimension of a broader commitment to create greater public awareness of the conditions, interests and aspirations of millions of Afro-Descendants, our sisters and brothers, in Central and South America. Justice for Afro-Descendants must be a priority on the Global Black Agenda!



## Honoring the Life and Legacy of Maurice Bishop: A Delegation to Grenada

Under the Leadership of **Maurice Bishop** and the New Jewel Movement, the People's Revolutionary Government of Grenada emerged as a bright beacon of progressive hope for nations of the Caribbean and the Pan African World. **Don Rojas**, IBW's Director of Communications and International Relations, had the distinct honor of serving as Press Secretary for **Prime Minister Bishop**. And, as a member of the tripartite leadership of the National Black Independent Political Party (NBIPP), **Dr. Ron Daniels** was privileged to lead a delegation of 100 Party Members and African American Leaders to Grenada where he was a speaker for All Heroes Day.



Maurice Bishop

Tragically, **Bishop** was executed by dissident elements who imprisoned him after an attempt to seize power. The coup attempt and execution of **Prime Minister Maurice Bishop** was the pretext for the U.S. invasion of Grenada to crush the revolution. These tragic events marked a set-up for progressive, revolutionary forces and Grenada lost its place as a



Prime Minister Dickon Mitchell

leading force for progressive change in the world.

Fortunately, the spirit of **Maurice Bishop** and the revolution never died. Truth crushed to earth has burst into ascendancy again with the election of **Prime Minister Dickon Mitchell** who has pledged to restore **Maurice Bishop** to his rightful place as one of the great leaders in the history of Grenada and the Caribbean. Plans are in the works for a weeklong commemoration of Life and Legacy of **Maurice Bishop** in October of 2023. Under the leadership of **Dr. Ron Daniels** and **Don Rojas**, IBW will organize a delegation to attend the Commemoration as part of a concerted effort to establish substantive working relations with the **Mitchell** Government and to solidify ongoing relationships with the reparatory justice movement and other civil society progressive institutions and organizations in Grenada.



## Supporting the Polisario Front and Independence for Western Sahara

IBW has long supported the right of self-determination for the peoples of Western Sahara in their just struggle for independence from Morocco. IBW reaffirmed its support by inviting **Sidi Omar**, Ambassador to the UN for the Polisario Front, to address the Conference. Working in collaboration with **Bill Fletcher**, veteran labor and social justice activist and former President of the Trans Africa Forum, IBW will continue to utilize its media platforms to educate and mobilize support for the Polisario Front as the internationally recognized representative of the people of Western Sahara.



## FraserNET

## **Connecting Black Brain Power for Black Development:** Hon. P.J. Patterson's Challenge

**Hon. P.J. Patterson** delivered an historic keynote address at the Opening Session of the Pan African Institute of the Conference in which he criticized western democracy as inadequate as a model for the post-colonial nations of Africa and the Caribbean. In his remarks at the Global Black Leadership Breakfast Special Session, **PM Patterson** spoke to the urgent need to counter the brain drain" in the Caribbean and Africa by tapping the vast intellectual capital in Black America, particularly among Black professionals. He suggested that IBW could be the vehicle to facilitate connecting African American professionals with Africa and the Caribbean. Accordingly, IBW will actively work to connect



Day 2 of SOBWCV: Dr. George Fraser

**Dr. George Fraser's** FraserNet, the largest network of socially conscious Black Professions in the world, and **Lecester Bill Allen**, Founder of the New Black Wall Street, and similar leaders and organizations with networks with the Center for Africa-Caribbean Advocacy at the University of West Indies Mona Campus in Jamaica, where **PM Patterson** is the Scholar in Residence. The goal is to accept **PM Patterson's** challenge to devise strategies for connecting Black Brain Power for Black Development. IBW will organize a team comprised of leaders and representatives of Black professional organizations to meet with PM Patterson for a working session to begin this process.



## Supporting Hon. Mia Mottley's Global Reparatory Justice Initiatives

IBW commends **Hon. Mia Mottley**, the first woman Prime Minister of Barbados and a recipient of the Legacy Award, for her bold leadership in promoting South to South relationships, reaching out to African heads of state and the African Union to encourage more vigorous engagement in the global reparations movement and demanding major reforms of western dominated financial institutions like the World Bank and International Monetary Fund. **PM Mottley** has also called for a Global Reparations Summit to maximize coordination between the various regional and national reparations commissions.



Hon. Mia Mottley

It is IBW's intent to develop a working relationship with **PM Mottley** to support these important reparatory justice initiatives and encourage the National African American Reparations Commission (NAARC) and the Global Circle for Reparations and Healing Commission (GCRH) to do likewise.

## NAARC

## Providing Administrative Support for Global Circle for Reparations and Healing

**Expanding the Multifaceted U.S. and Global Reparations Movements to empower and heal Black families, communities and nations** was a major goal of State of the Black World Conference V. Therefore, reparations was a major focal point of the Conference as reflected in the National/International Town Hall Meeting and the Issue Area Plenary and Working Sessions. As the Convener and Administrator for NAARC, IBW participated in the milestone Reparations Summit in Ghana in August of 2022 as a member of the emerging **Global Circle for Reparations and Healing.** The **Accra Declaration** from the **Ghana Summit** calls for ongoing efforts to strengthen the capacity of existing reparations Commissions and



Kamm Howard and Dr. Amara Enyia

organizations as the centerpiece for a growing global reparations movement. The Global Circle for Reparations and Healing has a unique role to play in this crucial process. Accordingly, as an outcome of deliberations at SOBWCV, IBW is committed to offering ongoing administrative support for the Global Circle for Reparations and Healing.



## Expanding the Pan African Unity Dialogue: Practicing Pan Africanism Wherever We Are

The growing diversity of Black America with an infusion of millions of immigrants from Africa, the Caribbean and Afro-Descendants from Central and South America demands that we find ways to work together to enhance the collective power of people of African descent, Black people in the U.S. We must not assume that commonality of skin color will automatically translate into unity of purpose and action. National, cultural and ethnic identity are powerful unifying factors among "Black people." We may live in the same cities without actually working together for the common good. Therefore, IBW advocates that we practice Pan Africanism wherever we reside as people of African descent, including in Black America.



February 22, 2020 Pan African Unity Dialogue Meeting.

To that end for more than a decade, IBW has been developing the Pan African Unity Dialogue (PAUD) in New York City as a model for practicing Pan Africanism among Continental Africans, Caribbean Americans, Afro-Latinos and African Americans. PAUD's membership is composed of influencers within these communities who are interested in resolving crises, identifying issues of mutual concern and developing strategies for joint work/action.

PAUD has emerged as a highly influential body with the impact of its deliberations and actions reaching far beyond New York. PAUD was a Sponsor for the Pan African Institute which opened the Conference. Given the rise of anti-immigrant nativism in Black America, IBW is convinced that structures like PAUD are more important than ever before. As an outcome of the Conference, IBW will explore the feasibility of establishing Pan African Unity Dialogues or similar structures in Baltimore, Washington, D.C. and Atlanta. These are cities where IBW has relationships which can be leveraged for this exploratory process.



# Building Relationships with Black Mayors Associations in the Pan African World

Black Mayors throughout the Pan African world can play a vital role in advancing a local and global agenda for the socio-economic development and empowerment of Black communities and nations. The Global Black Mayors and Elected Officials Roundtable Breakfast Special Session was designed to facilitate fulfilling this objective. Accordingly, IBW invited **Hon. Johnny Ford** and **Jean Pierre Elong Mbassi**, Secretary of the United Cities and Local Governments of Africa, as Special Guests and Legacy Award Recipients to share their perspectives on ways to strengthen relationships between Mayors and civil society organizations as



Day 4 of SOBWCV: Dr. Ron Daniels and Hon. Johnny Ford

a practical dimension of Pan Africanism. **Mr. Mbassi** was not able to attend, but **President Ford** commended IBW for playing a major role in connecting the World Conference of Mayors with **Secretary General Mbassi.** He urged IBW and its President, Dr. Ron Daniels, to continue facilitating the relationship between the World Conference of Mayors and United Cities and Local Governments of Africa and other associations in the Pan African world. Dr. Daniels has agreed to attend future meetings of both organizations as recommended by **President Johnny Ford.** 



Environmental justice, global warming, climate change, and clean, accessible and free water must rise to the top of the global agenda for people of African descent. Black people are universally vulnerable and disproportionately impacted by these issues. Therefore, with the concurrence and support of collaborating partners like Corporate Accountability and Corporate Accountability Participation Africa, IBW renews the call for a Global Summit on Water as a Human Right in Jackson, MS in conjunction with Earth Day, 2024. IBW is committed to playing a facilitative role in planning and convening this critically important Summit.



Day 2 of SOBWCV: Environmental Justice session

# Combating Gentrification as a State of Emergency in Black America

Gentrification, the displacement of Black people and Black culture, is a State of Emergency in Black America. As an outgrowth of the 2019 National Emergency Summit on Gentrification, subsequent formation of the National Community Restoration Initiative and the deliberations at SOBWCV, IBW will continue to facilitate the formation of a National Network or Alliance of anti-gentrification activists/organizers and the development of National Resource Center to provide technical assistance and other forms of support for the Network or Alliance. In addition, IBW will continue its effort to enlist the support of the Association of African American Mayors for this initiative. **Assata Richards**, Director of the Sankofa



Assata Richards and Damien Goodmon.

Research Institute, and **Damien Goodmon**, Director, Liberty Ecosystem/Downtown Crenshaw Rising, have agreed to collaborate with IBW to advance this Initiative.

## Advancing Paradigms for Reimagining Public Safety and Law Enforcement

Abolishing the criminal injustice system in the U.S., including ending the War on Drugs in all of its insidious vestiges, is a major priority for IBW. Consistent with this goal, under the leadership of **Ronald Hampton**, one of the world's leading experts and advocates on these issues, IBW convened two major National/ International Symposiums on Reimagining Public Safety and Law Enforcement in 2022. The results of these very productive Symposia were the centerpiece of the Plenary and Working Sessions on these issues at the Conference. With the input of participants at the Conference, IBW is prepared to move forward with the creation of a National Network and Resource Center and National



Day 2 of SOBWCV

Police Justice and Accountability Task Force to provide assistance to local communities to develop and implement new paradigms of public safety and law enforcement. IBW will also utilize the composite of best practices derived from the Symposia and sessions at the conference to establish one or more models of community-based, community-controlled public safety and law enforcement working at the behest of residents, community-based organizations and agencies. A neighborhood in Washington, D.C. will be selected for the first pilot.

## Supporting the Live Free Initiative as a Model for Movement-Building

Live Free is a social justice network dedicated to ending gun violence, mass incarceration, and mass criminalization through education, advocacy and direct action. Under the visionary leadership of **Pastor Michael McBride**, Live Free has arguably emerged as the most innovative, comprehensive and effective model for addressing issues threatening the survival of our communities. Live Free is a major non-sectarian collaborative, facilitative force for transformative change in Black America. As such, IBW will continue its collaboration with Live Free and will actively encourage other organizations, agencies and institutions to join in this collaborative effort to build a formidable, coordinated movement to end gun violence, fratricide/murders, mass incarceration and mass criminalization in Black America.



Day 3 of SOBWCV: Pastor Michael McBride



# Supporting Black Lives Matter Grassroots to Regain Funds for the People's Struggle

IBW reaffirms our commitment to support Black Lives Matter Grassroots in its righteous struggle to regain millions of dollars illegally seized from the Black Lives Matter Global Network Foundation by **Shalomyah Bowers** and the Bowers Consulting Firm. These funds were donated to the Foundation to support BLM Grassroots' commitment to advance people's struggles for transformative racial and social justice. These funds should be returned to BLM Grassroots to fulfill the intended mission. IBW stands with BLM Grassroots for this righteous cause.



Day 3 of SOBWCV: Making Black Lives Matter session

### **Scenes from SOBWCV**



For more photos visit ibw21.org/sobwcv

## **Special Initiatives**



## Supporting the Black World Media Network (BWMN) as a Legacy Project for Don Rojas

Don Rojas, IBW's Director of Communications and International Relations is one of the great progressive leaders of our time and a brilliant communications visionary. His credentials are too numerous to cite in this brief introduction, but they include serving as the Communications Director for the NAACP under the administration of Dr. Ben Chavis; Editor of the New York Amsterdam News; General Manager of WBAI, Pacifica Network, NY; General Manager of Free Speech Television and most notably Press Secretary and Advisor to Prime Minister Maurice Bishop of the People's Revolutionary Government of Grenada. We are all indebted to Comrade Brother Rojas for his life of revolutionary service.

Some will recall Don's pioneering launch of The Black World Today (TBWT) years ago on the Internet as a new medium of communications. TBWT was ahead of its time and ultimately did not succeed, but his vision for thirst for innovative, purpose-driven media has not subsided Hence, with the support of IBW, Don conceived and launched the Black World Media Network as an ambitious multi-media digital platform that airs positive music and critical news from around the Pan African World 24 hours a day, coupled with video documentaries, podcasts and commentaries on the major issues of the day!

There is nothing like BWMN anywhere. This is Don's gift to the Global Black Community and his legacy project. In the spirit of Ujima and Ujamaa - Collective Work and Responsibility and Cooperative Economics - IBW is appealing to interested parties around the world to contribute your time, talent and resources to make BWMN a Pan African success! **www.blackworldmedia.net** 



## Establishing a Dr. Leonard Jeffries and Dr. Rosalind Jeffries Appreciation Fund

As friends and supporters of Dr. Leonard Jeffries are aware, our Paramount Chief recently experienced some health challenges. At 83 years young, his tireless commitment to the education and liberation of African people was such that he has made an amazing recovery. One of the highlights of SOBWC was his unexpected arrival with his lifelong partner and distinguished scholar Dr. Rosalind Jeffries. When his entry into the auditorium was announced, the audience erupted in thunderous, sustained response, a fitting indicator of the high esteem in which this Master Teacher is held.

Dr. Jeffries illness and the high cost of medical care exposed the absolute duty, the imperative that we as African people do whatever is necessary to provide, take care of our servant leaders. Dr. J. and Queen Rosalind have devoted their lives working tirelessly for the survival, restoration and development of the race, including contributing their financial resources time and time again.

Therefore, as an act of Ujima and Ujamaa – Collective Work and Responsibility and Cooperative Economics – it is only fitting that leaders and organizations come together to sponsor a Pan African Day of Appreciation (or it might be days or a week of Appreciation) with the goal of raising substantial resources to establish a Dr. Leonard Jeffries and Dr. Rosalind Jeffries Appreciation Fund. The sole purpose of such a Fund is to ensure that our esteemed leaders' basic living costs are met, and resources are available for them to continue their service for the race.

Unless such an effort is already underway, IBW commits to convening a cross-section of leaders and organizations to develop a plan to fulfill this most worthy goal.



## **Assessment and Call to Action**



Dr. Ron Daniels

These are the Action-Items derived from the deliberations at State of the Black World Conference V. They constitute the Action Agenda, the way forward from the vantage point of the Institute of the Black World 21st Century as the convener/facilitator of this extraordinary gathering of Black Brilliance from the Global Black World. As previously stated, IBW acknowledges that there are other suggestions and recommendations that will be forthcoming from the Facilitators of the Issue Area Working Sessions. Within the limits of our capacity, we are committed to collaborating with a range of organizations, institutions and agencies to advance all of the Action-Items as the composite Action Agenda for the Conference.

Based on the testimonies of the some 700 or more sons and daughters of Africa whose presence and participation warmed the cold, cavernous halls of the Baltimore Convention Center, State of the Black World Conference V may well have achieved the aspiration and goal of the conveners of being one of the great gatherings Black people of the 21st century. The African-centered spiritual and cultural atmosphere was enriched by the incredible contributions of sisters and brothers from Africa, the Caribbean, Central and South America, Europe, Canada, and Black America. One Participant called the Conference a convening of the "Black United Nations." Several Participants cited the opportunity to meet, network with and interface with Black people from all over the world as the most distinctive and inspiring feature of the Conference.

At the Closing Ndaba/Closing session, Dr. Ron Daniels shared the testimony of a sister who said: This conference changed my life." An events planner, who organizes large conferences and meetings professionally pledged to volunteer her services for future IBW conferences; a brother, who attended a State of the Black World Conference for the first time shared that "I have followed the work of IBW for a long time, but after this conference, I leave committed to becoming an active supporter." And, of greatest significance for the future of IBW as a global vehicle for Black empowerment, several young people expressed an eagerness to lend their skill, talent and resources to support IBW. It is our hope that this tremendous reservoir of goodwill will be converted into an association of friends and advocates that will substantially enhance IBW's capacity to advance its vision and mission.

Deep into the winter of his life's work at 80+1, Dr. Ron Daniels has proclaimed that building the Institute of the Black World 21st Century as a vehicle promoting a culture of collaboration to heal and empower Black families, communities and nations is his legacy endeavor, the culmination of his journey for justice. As such the ambitious scope and scale of State of the Black World Conference V was designed to be a major milestone toward the achievement of this aspiration.

In the African tradition, integrity, your word, your good name matters. As the Elders say, "Your word is your bond." Can you imagine the tremors of trepidation that the conveners of State of the Black World Conference V experienced when, through a confluence of "Murphy's Law" on steroids, one by one the distinguished heads of state who definitively, officially confirmed their participation by official correspondence were unable to attend? After advertising the participation of these esteemed Pan African leaders, how would we explain their absence and how would it be received by Participants who were attracted to and decided to attend the Conference in part because of an opportunity to see and hear these outstanding heads of state?

In the end, our fears proved unjustified. Participants, our people, heard and understood that our word was/ is indeed our bond. As unlikely as it sometimes seems, stuff happens. To our relief the absence of the heads of state was hardly mentioned because there was a myriad of prominent personages who did attend and delivered powerful, substantive and useful presentations in the Town Hall Meetings, Opening and Closing Sessions. And, equally important, there were scores of resource persons and facilitators who shared rich and instructive information in the Issue Area Plenary and Working Sessions which resulted in a rewarding learning/sharing experience where each and every Participant brought something to the process; validating the concept that we are each other's best teachers.

It was an exhilarating revelation to learn that in the hearts and minds of the Participants content, substance, process and an African-centered, family-like environment superseded personality, no matter how prominent or prestigious! This is a lesson learned which will guide our thinking as we plan future gathering of our people.

God and the Ancestors willing and with the support of friends and advocates of IBW, we will return to Newark NJ, the site of State of the Black World Conference IV, for State of the Black World Conference VI in November of 2024 -- to assess the State of Black America and the Pan African World after the presidential election. IBW has adopted Newark as an aspirational model city because of the progressive policies being formulated and implemented by the administration of Mayor Ras. J Baraka. With Mayor Baraka's blessing and willingness to serve as our host, we will convene for an even more powerful global gathering of people of African descent, Black people, to measure our collective progress towards "Global Africans Rising, Empowerment, Reparations and Healing!"

#### No Struggle, No Progress, Forward Ever! A luta Continua!

With Profound Thanks/Appreciation The Institute of the Black World 21st Century

**Dr. Ron Daniels** President

Rick Adams Chairman

Richard Jones Treasurer

Mary France Daniels Secretary

**Don Rojas** Director of Communications

Ronald E. Hampton Board Member

Rev. Shirley Gravely-Currie Board Member

**Greg Akili** Board Member Kareem Aziz Board Member

Zach Williams Board Member

Harris Floyd Board Member

Jacqueline Patterson Board Member

**Ginger E. Underwood-Herring** Board Member

Kevin Baker Board Member

Chester Marshall Board Member

Amina Mayazi-Saunders Board Member



## Synopsis of Selected Speeches & Presentations



Day 1 of SOBWCV: P.M. Patterson

**Hon. P.J. Patterson**, the longest serving Prime Minister of Jamaica and a global stateman, opened the Pan African Institute of the Conference with a Keynote Address that was quickly recognized as an historic statement on the redevelopment of post-colonial nations in the Caribbean and Africa. The former P.M. delivered a searing indictment of U.S. and western dominated global financial institutions like the International Monetary Fund and World Bank that intentionally formulate policies that suffocate rather than aid the development of formerly colonized nations in the Black World. **P.M. Patterson** challenged the Global Black Community to unite and utilize its vast material and human resources to build thriving, sustainable, interdependent nations.

In our judgment **Professor Hilary Beckles**, Vice-Chancellor/President of the University of the West Indies and Chairman of the CARICOM Reparations Com-

mission, is the leading public intellectual in the world, the global Guru of the reparatory Justice movement. Therefore, it was only appropriate that he offer framing remarks for the opening National International Town Hall Meeting on the *State of the Global Reparations Movement: The Way Forward*. Consistent with his predication that "reparations will be the human rights issue of the 21<sup>st</sup> Century," **Professor Beckles** recounting how corporations, institutions and families who engaged in or benefitted from enslavement are coming forward to confess, apologize, and pledge resources to repair the damages inflicted on Black people. He applauded the **African Union** for endorsing and committing to join the struggle for reparatory justice. This decision engages heads of state as powerful partners with civil society

advocates and organizations. **Professor Beckles** urged reparations advocates, organizations and commissions from across the Global Black Diaspora to forge bonds of unity, citing SOBWCV in Baltimore as the beginning of a truly global reparations movement.

During the National/International Town Hall Meeting on *The State of Black America and the Pan African World*, the young Uganda pop star turned political leader **Bobi Wine** demonstrated a grasp of the history of the colonial domination of Africa and the rise of neo-colonial rule imposed with willing accomplices like the brutal, authoritarian, corrupt, U.S. backed would be President for life **Yoweri Museveni**. **Bobi Wine** has mobilized massive opposition to the **Museveni** regime by educating and organizing disaffected and aspiring young people who are fed up with Africa's "presidents for life." Indeed, he is widely believed to have won



Day 1 of SOBWCV: Professor Hilary Beckles



Day 2 of SOBWCV: Bobi Wine

the most recent presidential election by a landslide. **Bobi Wine** is the personification of global Africans rising up to challenge and remove neo-colonial leaders from the path towards genuine African liberation! Participants of SOBWCV likely witnessed a brilliant address by the future President of Uganda!

Addressing the same Town Hall Meeting, **Marc Morial,** President/CEO of the National Urban League, applauded IBW for consistently gathering the ecosystem of civil rights/human rights organizations in Black America and the Pan African world to address issues of vital concern to Black people. In a passionate pre-

sentation, **President Morial** warned of the existential threat to Democracy and Black people by the rise of white nationalism and white hate groups in America as documented in the National Urban League's recently released State of **Black America Report**. He challenged the Participants to prepare for an all-out struggle to advance voting rights, criminal justice reform and reparations in a hostile environment where hate groups are determined to turn back the clock on Black progress by any means necessary.



Day 2 of SOBWCV: Marc Morial



*Day 3 of SOBWCV: Rev. Lennox Yearwood and Kim Poole* 

**Kim Poole** is the visionary Founder and President of the Teaching Artist Institute. During a conversation with **Rev. Lennox Yearwood**, Founder and President of the Hip Hop Caucus, as part of the Cross Generational Panel on *The Role of Hip Hop in the Black Freedom Struggle*, Sister **Kim** extolled the virtue and value of art and culture as the essential foundation of the Black Freedom Struggle; the spiritual, inspirational source of the resistant, resilience and revolutionary spirit of African people. She cited activist artists from throughout the Pan African world who are spearheading the struggle for self-determination and full freedom of Black people. **Sister Kim** unapologetically questioned the value of electoral politics if Black politicians cannot or will not advance polices that meet

the basic needs of Black people. The role of the activist artist is to hold elected officials and Black leaders accountable to the people!

Fresh off her election to the office of President of the African American Mayor's Association, **Shawyn Patterson-Howard**, Mayor of Mt. Vernon, NY, made a surprise appearance at the Opening Ndaba/Opening Session of the Conference to express support for IBW and her appreciation for the outreach to Black Mayors to attend/participate. **Mayor Shawyn**, as she is affectionately known, took the occasion to pay tribute to IBW Legacy Award recipient **Hon. Johnny Ford**, the first African American Mayor of Tuskegee, AL, and Founder of the World Conference of Mayors. **Mayor Shawyn** stressed the critical importance for Black people



Day 3 of SOBWCV: Mayor Shawyn Patterson-Howard

#### Synopsis of Selected Speeches and Presentations Cont.

engaging in electoral politics to achieve justice, equality and the resources to secure a better quality of life. However, she emphasized the need for Black people to avoid becoming politicians as usual perpetrating politics as usual. **Mayor Shawyn** shared that she is really a social worker at heart and carries her people serving, people-based, people-orient-ed, people-empowering values and commitment with her as a guide to her administration. Electoral politics should be a participatory process where the people not only hold electoral officials accountable, but the people also work with elected officials to formulate and carry-out public policies that affect families and communities.



Hon. Francia Marquez, the first Afro-Descendant woman Vice-President of Colombia, was unable to attend SOBWCV because of a national protocol that prohibits the President and Vice-President to be in a nation at the same time (**President Gustavo Petro** was in the U.S. at the time of the Conference), but participants were delighted to receive Senator Hernandez Palomino from Colombia as the Special Guest for the Global Women's Summit Breakfast and to receive the IBW Legacy Award. With Helmer Quinones, Advisor to Vice-President Marquez at her side, during the Legacy Award and Cultural Extravaganza, Senator Palomino expressed her appreciation for the Award and her delight for being able to engage with people of African Maroons in Colombia who have suffered brutal suppression under various rightwing regimes in Colombia, Senator Palomino proclaimed

*Day 4 of SOBWCV: Sen. Hernandez Palomino* her determination to achieve full freedom for Afro Descendants and expressed appreciation for the solidarity of the Conveners of SOBWC.

The highlight of the Closing Ndaba/Closing Session were the exhilarating presentations of three new generation leaders, **Maurice Mitchell**, National Director of the Working Families Party, **Tarana Burke**, Founder of the #ME TOO Movement, and **LaTosha Brown**, Co-Founder of Black Lives Matter, climaxed by the keynote presentation of **Dr. Julius Garvey**, Honorary Chairman of the Conference.

**Maurice Mitchell** called on organized labor to vigorously confront organized capital with independent political power. He described the Working Families Party as a multi-racial political vehicle solidly based among Black people and



Day 5 of SOBWCV: Tarana Burke

people of color; a multifaceted Party that is committed to utilizing all phases of political power including protests, advocacy, institutional development and electoral politics.



Day 5 of SOBWCV: Maurice Mitchell

Touting the recent victory of the Working Families Party in aiding the election of **Brandon Johnson** as the progressive Mayor of Chicago, **Brother Maurice** urged Black people not to be afraid to take power to transform the Capitalist system which is oppressing all of us. He invited the audience to join the Working Families Party in the struggle to build political, economic, cultural and spiritual power to create a better society and world!

**Tarana Burke**, founder of the #METOO Movement, stressed the urgency of addressing the issue of gender violence against Black women. She added that



combatting sexual violence must be a priority for all racial and social justice movements. **Tarana** noted that African American women have the second highest incidence of sexual violence in the USA with Native-American women at the top. You cannot talk about police brutality and not talk about sexual brutality of Black and Brown women. As a community we must address these uncomfortable issues. If Black lives are to truly matter, then the quality of our lives also has to matter. It is critically important that we talk more about healing and repair when we talk about sexual violence in our communities.

When it was her turn to speak, **LaTosha Brown**, Co-founder of Black Voters Matter, started off by singing a moving Negro Spiritual; declaring that the spirit has always carried Black people through from enslavement to the present. She issued a profound challenge for Black people to think deeply about our ultimate

Day 5 of SOBWCV: LaTosha Brown

mission. We have fought against racism forever, but how many of us have actually asked the question, "what would this nation and the world look like without racism?" Ultimately, we must envision/reimagine an America without racism. What would a society and world look like where people feel valued and respected. If we can't or don't imagine a new society, we will never create it. Ultimately, it's not about our "blackness" or political parties, its about our humanity. We must pay more attention to the twin anchors of our humanity, Black Love and Black Power. Our politics should

be an expression of our humanity. There is no Black Power without Black love for ourselves and each other! The audience repeatedly exploded with applause during Sister **LaTosha's** soaring oration!

As the Keynote Speaker for the Closing Ndaba/Closing Session, **Dr. Julius Garvey** concluded with inspiring analyses, prescriptions and vision for Global Black Diaspora and the motherland that clearly demonstrated that he is not just the son of the **Honorable Marcus Mosiah Garvey**, he has emerged as a Pan African political philosopher and global icon in his own right. In essence, **Dr. Garvey's** message was/is that neither the European systems of Capitalism or Communism are necessary or sufficient for African people to adopt for our survival, restoration and development. We must embrace and practice the fundamental spiritual and cultural principles and values of the African worldview, African Humanism to rescue and restore the race and in the final analysis the world! People of African descent, Black people must be in the forefront of creating a new world order based on African Humanism.



Day 5 of SOBWCV: Dr. Julius Garvey



## Acknowledgements

The Officers and Board of Directors of the Institute of the Black World 21<sup>st</sup> Century would like to express our appreciation to the foundations, organizations, institutions, companies and individuals who agreed to be Sponsors and Donors for State of the Black World Conference V.

## **SOBWCV Sponsors**

- » National Urban League
- » Live Free Campaign
- » National Alliance for Faith and Justice
- » Corporate Accountability
- » Black Lives Matter Grassroots
- » Common Counsel Foundation
- » Haitian American Foundation for Democracy
- » Liberation Ventures
- » Uber
- » Teaching Artist Institute
- » Hip Hop Caucus
- » Dr. James Turner Memorial Fund
- » Pan African Unity Dialogue Support Committee
- » Liberating Capital
- » House of the Lord Church
- » St. Mark AME Church
- » Susan Taylor
- » Rev. Dr. Buster Soaries

The scope and scale of State of the Black World Conference V as a global gathering was possible because of a grant from the MacArthur Foundation.



### **SOBWCV Media Partners**

- » WBAI, 99.5 FM, Pacifica New York
- » WPFW, 89.3 FM, Pacifica Washington, DC
- » WURD 96.1 FM, 900AM Philadelphia, PA
- » WEAA 88.9 FM Baltimore, MD
- » Open Line, WBLS, 107 FM New York, NY
- » The Global Black Experience, 99.5 FM New York, NY
- Carl Nelson Show,
   WOL 95.9FM & 1450AM
   Washington DC
- » WOLB, 1010AM Baltimore, MD

### **SOBWCV Baltimore Local Host Advisory Planning Committee**

- » Kareem Aziz, Chairperson
- » Haki Ammi
- » Nini Vernetta Aziz
- » Clifford Collins

- Joshua Harris
- » DaQuan Lawrence
- » Linda Lewis

>>

» Rev. Kobi Little

- » Lena Mobley
- » Kim Poole
- » Rev. Dr. Robert Turner
- » Atiba Wise II

### **Events Planner**

### Institute of the Black World 21st Century Staff

- Carolyn McClair Carolyn McClair Public Relations
- » Don Rojas
- » Tiana Stowers Pearson
- » Kyle P. Pennerman
- » Tiffany Borbolla

- » Paulann Patterson
- » Louis Romain
- » Alvonn Forsyth



## **SOBWCV Vendors**

**Bridges Shea Butter** 

Lonnie Bridges abdulmuhammad29@gmail.com 919.539.2039

#### New Marks Flags RBG123.net

Bill Curtis billcurtis7@gmail.com 410.369.8265 Baltimore, MD

**365 Diversity** Information on Health, Education & Economics

#### 365diversity.com

Kimya Nuru Dennis kimya@365Diversity.com 443.529.9935 Baltimore, MD

#### NY Christian Times

nychristiantimes.com Publisher@NYChristianTimes. com Rev. Dennis Dillon 212.470.2816

## Passionate Travel, Inc.

PassionateTravelInc.com victoriafalk777@gmail.com Victoria Falk 800.890.7492 Brooklyn, NY

#### The Foundation International

Handmade Jewelry & Crafts Anthony Frazier 1anthonyfrazier@gmail.com 513.888.0547 Cincinnati, OH

## YBI African Apparel & Fashion ybiafricanapparel.com

Yeshiyah B. Israel yeshiyah@hotmail.com 202.460.7319 Baltimore, MD

### **Creative Motif Jewelry**

creativemotifjewelry.net

Samuel Jenkins samuelbroo@verizon.net 516.263.1859 Jamaica, NY

#### **Quilts by Veronica**

QuiltsbyVeronica.com

Veronica Kirton Johnson veronicakj55@gmail.com 718.810.3122 Rosedale, NY

#### FA African Boutik

Yassin Joof joofyassin@gmail.com 646.750.4644 Bronx, NY

#### Afrikan World Books

Nati Kamau-Nataki afrikanworldword@aol.com 410.383.2006 Baltimore, MD

#### Sacred Healing 7 Herb Center SacredHealing7.com

Zakiyyah Madyun theherbalist1750@gmail.com 347.407.4312 Bronx, NY

#### Afrikan World Art

#### afrikanworldart.com

Michael Muhammad mzmuhammad@hotmail.com 267.312.4189 Philadelphia, PA

#### African Art Cultural

#### africanculturalart.com

Tabitha Munoko tabitha.munoko@gmail.com 732.500.3099 Old Bridge, NJ

#### National Black Unity Newspaper

#### tnbun.com

David Murphy hakiammi@gmail.com 410.209.9687 Baltimore, MD

#### Herbal Market

#### herbalmarketonline.com

Dr. Jamal Robinson drjamal@herbalmarketonline. com 757.424.9356 Virginia Beach, VA

#### **JLS Enterprises LLC**

Dead Sea Minerals Skin Care John L. Smith JohnLEnterprises@yahoo.com 973.923.5985 Newark, NJ

#### Mola+E1sses Sunshine Studio

Jewelry molassessunshinestudiodesigns.com

Hallie Stone molassessunshinestudiodesigns@gmail.com 202.423.8821 Hyattsville, MD

#### **JEV** Collection

Fashion & Beauty Products jevcollection.com Marie Judith J. Estime Viel jevcollection2019@gmail.com 484.529.2419 Reading, PA

#### RAW OG

Jewelry Zahki Wajid raw0322@yahoo.com 202.702.7290 Atlanta, GA

#### Transatlantic Radio

#### youthcoreofbaltimore.org

Kente Cloth | Shea Butter Tracy Williams transatlanticradio01@gmail.com 443.600.5691 Baltimore, MD





#### About the Institute of the Black World 21st Century

The Institute of the Black World 21st Century (IBW, IBW21) is committed to enhancing the capacity of Black communities in the U.S. and globally to achieve cultural, social, economic and political equality and an enhanced quality of life for all marginalized people.

Learn more about us at IBW21.ORG



#### We need your support!

Dr. Ron Daniels and the Board of the Institute of the Black World 21st Century need your support to make IBW's critical projects, programs and initiatives self-sufficient, and to enhance IBW's vital role as a Resource Center promoting collaboration for Black Empowerment in the U.S. and the Pan African world.

Contribute to our mission today at IBW21.ORG/SUPPORT/GENERAL



#### Have you signed-up yet?

Join our mailing list to get IBW21 email alerts, news & announcements. Scan the QR code or visit **IBW21.ORG/JOINLIST** 

Stay connected and follow us at @IBW21st on these platforms

